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Committee on Acoustic Impacts on
Marine Mammals (Committee) 30
November—2 December 2004 in New
Orleans, LA.

DATES: The Committee will meet
Tuesday, November 30, 2004, from 9
a.m. to 5 p.m.; Wednesday, December 1,
from 8:30 a.m. to 5 p.m.; and Thursday,
December 2, from 8:30 a.m. to 5 p.m.
This meeting is open to the public.
These times and the agenda topics
described below are subject to change.
Please refer to the Commission’s Web
site (www.mmec.gov) for the most up-to-
date meeting information. The
Committee’s fifth public meeting is
tentatively scheduled for 1-3 March
2005 in the Washington, DC
metropolitan area. Further information
on that meeting will be published in the
Federal Register and posted on the
Commission’s Web site.

ADDRESSES: The 30 November—2
December meeting will be held at the
Bourbon Orleans Hotel, 717 Orleans
Street, New Orleans, Louisiana 70116,
phone 504-523-2222, fax 504-571—
4666, http://www.wyndham.com/hotels/
MSYBO/main.wnt.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Erin
Vos, Sound Project Manager, Marine
Mammal Commission, 4340 East-West
Hwy., Rm. 905, Bethesda, MD 20814, e-
mail: evos@mmc.gov, tel.: (301) 504—
0087, fax: (301) 504—0099; or visit the
Commission’s Web site at
WWW.IIIC.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This
meeting is to be held pursuant to the
directive in the Omnibus
Appropriations Act of 2003 (Pub. L.
108-7) that the Commission convene a
conference or series of conferences to
“share findings, survey acoustic ‘threats’
to marine mammals, and develop means
of reducing those threats while
maintaining the oceans as a global
highway of international commerce.”
The meeting agenda includes
presentations and discussions related to
(1) progress made by the Subcommittee
on Synthesis of Current Knowledge; (2)
a draft report from the Subcommittee on
Management and Mitigation; (3)
proposals from the Working Group on
Integrity and Balance in Research,
Working Group on Animal Welfare
Ethics, and Working Group on Research
Permitting and Incidental Harassment
Authorizations; (4) potential
recommendations concerning research
priorities, and others developed by the
Subcommittees and Working Groups; (5)
a report from the International Policy
Workshop on sound and marine
mammals; (6) how scientific uncertainty
and disagreement will be handled in the
Committee’s final products, (7) the

outline of the final Advisory Committee
report; and (8) the consideration of
appointing a drafting Subcommittee.
The agenda also includes two public
comment sessions. Guidelines for
making public comments, background
documents, and the meeting agenda,
including the specific times of public
comment periods, will be posted on the
Commission’s Web site prior to the
meeting. Written comments may be
submitted at the meeting.

Dated: November 10, 2004.
David Cottingham,
Executive Director.
[FR Doc. 04—25439 Filed 11-16—04; 8:45 am]|
BILLING CODE 6820-31-M

NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION

NSB Programs and Plans Committee;
Notice of Meeting

AGENCY HOLDING MEETING: National
Science Foundation, National Science
Board, Committee on Programs and
Plans.

DATE AND TIME: November 19, 2004 2
p-m.—2:45 p.m. Open Session
Teleconference.

PLACE: The National Science
Foundation, Stafford One Building,
4201 Wilson Boulevard, Room 220,
Arlington, VA 22230.

STATUS: This meeting will be open to
the public.

MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED:
Friday, November 19, 2004
Open Session (2 to 2:45 p.m.)

1. Approval on behalf of the NSB [as
delegated] NSF management’s response
to the OIG Semiannual Report to
Congress.

2. Report on A&O recommended
Board responses to IPA-related
questions from staff of House
Appropriations Subcommittee for VA,
HUD and Independent agencies.

3. Report on draft Board position
statements on issues in NAPA
recommendations.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Dr.
Michael P. Crosby, Executive Officer
and NSB Office Director, (703) 292—
7000, http://www.nsf.gov/nsb.

Michael P. Crosby,

Executive Officer and NSB Office Director.
[FR Doc. 04—25458 Filed 11-16—-04; 8:45 am|
BILLING CODE 7555-01-P

NUCLEAR REGULATORY
COMMISSION

[Docket Nos. 50-498 and 50-499]

STP Nuclear Operating Company, et
al.; South Texas Project, Units 1 and 2;
Notice of Consideration of Approval of
Application Regarding Proposed
Acquisition and Opportunity for a
Hearing

The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission (NRC or the Commission)
is considering issuance of an order
under Section 50.80 of Title 10 of the
Code of Federal Regulations (10 CFR)
approving the indirect transfer of
Facility Operating License Nos. NPF—76
and NPF-80 for South Texas Project
(STP), Units 1 and 2, respectively, to the
extent held by Texas Genco, LP (Texas
Genco).

The application requests the consent
of the NRC to the proposed indirect
transfer of control of the STP, Units 1
and 2, licenses to the extent held by
Texas Genco by virtue of the transfer of
ownership of approximately 81 percent
of the stock of Texas Genco’s indirect
parent company, Texas Genco Holdings
Inc. (TGN), from CenterPoint Energy,
Inc., (CenterPoint Energy) to GC Power
Acquisitions, LLG (GC Power). Texas
Genco is an indirect subsidiary of TGN
and TGN is an indirect subsidiary of
CenterPoint Energy. The transaction
would result in the indirect transfer of
control of Texas Genco’s 30.8 percent
undivided ownership interest in STP,
Units 1 and 2. In addition to its 30.8
percent undivided ownership interest in
STP, Units 1 and 2, Texas Genco holds
a corresponding 30.8 percent interest in
STP Nuclear Operating Company
(STPNOQ), a not-for-profit Texas
corporation, which is the licensed
operator of STP, Units 1 and 2. The
application further requests, as
necessary, approval of the indirect
transfer of control of this 30.8 percent
interest in STPNOC, to the extent such
indirect transfer would result in an
indirect transfer of the licenses as held
by STPNOC, thereby requiring NRC
approval.

(According to the application, Texas
Genco’s 30.8 percent ownership interest
is expected to increase as a result of
Texas Genco’s exercising its right of first
refusal under the Amended and
Restated South Texas Project
Participation Agreement, pursuant to
which Texas Genco has entered into a
Purchase and Sale Agreement dated
September 3, 2004, to acquire an
additional 13.2 percent undivided
ownership interest in STP, Units 1 and
2, from AEP Texas Central Company.
This acquisition would result in an
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increase in Texas Genco’s ownership
interest in STP, Units 1 and 2, and
related interest in STPNOC to 44
percent. This transaction will be
addressed in a separate application and
is not the subject of this notice.)

Pursuant to 10 CFR 50.80, no license
shall be transferred, directly or
indirectly, through transfer of control of
the license, unless the Commission
gives its consent in writing. The
Commission will approve an
application for the indirect transfer of a
license, if the Commission determines
that the proposed transaction
effectuating the indirect transfer will not
affect the qualifications of the holder of
the license, and that the transfer is
otherwise consistent with applicable
provisions of law, regulations, and
orders issued by the Commission
pursuant thereto. Before issuance of the
proposed Order, the Commission will
have made findings required by the
Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended
(the Act), and the Commission’s
regulations.

The filing of requests for hearing and
petitions for leave to intervene with
regard to the license transfer
application, are discussed below.

Within 20 days after the date of
publication of this notice, the licensee
may file a request for a hearing with
respect to issuance of the amendment to
the subject facility operating license and
any person whose interest may be
affected by this proceeding and who
wishes to participate as a party in the
proceeding must file a written request
for a hearing and a petition for leave to
intervene. Requests for a hearing and
petitions for leave to intervene shall be
filed in accordance with the
Commission’s rules of practice set forth
in Subpart M, “Hearing Requests and
Procedures for Hearings on License
Transfer Applications,” of 10 CFR part
2. Interested persons should consult a
current copy of 10 CFR 2.309, which is
available at the Commission’s Public
Document Room (PDR), located at One
White Flint North, Public File Area
01F21, 11555 Rockville Pike (first floor),
Rockville, Maryland. Publicly available
records will be accessible from the
Agencywide Documents Access and
Management System’s (ADAMS) Public
Electronic Reading Room on the Internet
at the NRC Web site, http://
www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-
collections/cfr/. (Note: Public access to
ADAMS has been temporarily
suspended so that security reviews of
publicly available documents may be
performed and potentially sensitive
information removed. Please check the
NRC Web site for updates on the
resumption of ADAMS access.) If a

request for a hearing or petition for
leave to intervene is filed within 20
days after the date of publication of this
notice, the Commission or a presiding
officer designated by the Commission or
by the Chief Administrative Judge of the
Atomic Safety and Licensing Board
Panel, will rule on the request and/or
petition; and the Secretary or the Chief
Administrative Judge of the Atomic
Safety and Licensing Board will issue a
notice of a hearing or an appropriate
order.

As required by 10 CFR 2.309, a
petition for leave to intervene shall set
forth with particularity the interest of
the petitioner in the proceeding, and
how that interest may be affected by the
results of the proceeding. The petition
should specifically explain the reasons
why intervention should be permitted
with particular reference to the
following general requirements: (1) The
name, address and telephone number of
the requestor or petitioner; (2) the
nature of the requestor’s/petitioner’s
right under the Act to be made a party
to the proceeding; (3) the nature and
extent of the requestor’s/petitioner’s
property, financial, or other interest in
the proceeding; and (4) the possible
effect of any decision or order which
may be entered in the proceeding on the
requestors/petitioner’s interest. The
petition must also identify the specific
contentions which the petitioner/
requestor seeks to have litigated at the
proceeding.

Each contention must consist of a
specific statement of the issue of law or
fact to be raised or controverted. In
addition, the petitioner/requestor shall
provide a brief explanation of the bases
for the contention and a concise
statement of the alleged facts or expert
opinion which support the contention
and on which the petitioner/requestor
intends to rely in proving the contention
at the hearing. The petitioner/requestor
must also provide references to those
specific sources and documents of
which the petitioner/requestor is aware
and on which the petitioner intends to
rely to establish those facts or expert
opinion. The petition must include
sufficient information to show that a
genuine dispute exists with the
applicant on a material issue of law or
fact. Contentions shall be limited to
matters within the scope of the
amendment under consideration. The
contention must be one which, if
proven, would entitle the petitioner/
requestor to relief. A petitioner/
requestor who fails to satisfy these
requirements with respect to at least one
contention will not be permitted to
participate as a party.

Those permitted to intervene become
parties to the proceeding, subject to any
limitations in the order granting leave to
intervene, and have the opportunity to
participate fully in the conduct of the
hearing.

Nontimely requests and/or petitions
and contentions will not be entertained
absent a determination by the
Commission or the presiding officer of
the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board
that the petition, request and/or the
contentions should be granted based on
a balancing of the factors specified in 10
CFR 2.309(a)(1)(i)—(viii).

A request for a hearing or a petition
for leave to intervene must be filed by:
(1) First class mail addressed to the
Office of the Secretary of the
Commission, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission, Washington, DC 20555—
0001, Attention: Rulemaking and
Adjudications Staff; (2) courier, express
mail, and expedited delivery services:
Office of the Secretary, Sixteenth Floor,
One White Flint North, 11555 Rockville
Pike, Rockville, Maryland 20852,
Attention: Rulemaking and
Adjudications Staff; (3) e-mail
addressed to the Office of the Secretary,
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission,
HEARINGDOCKET@NRC.GOV; or (4)
facsimile transmission addressed to the
Office of the Secretary, U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington,
DC, Attention: Rulemakings and
Adjudications Staff at (301) 415-1101,
verification number is (301) 415—-1966.
A copy of the request for hearing and
petition for leave to intervene should
also be sent to the Office of the General
Counsel, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission, Washington, DC 20555—
0001, and it is requested that copies be
transmitted either by means of facsimile
transmission to (301) 415—3725 or by e-
mail to OGCMailCenter@nrc.gov. A copy
of the request for hearing and petition
for leave to intervene should also be
sent to Mr. John E. Matthews, Morgan,
Lewis, & Bockius, LLP, 1111
Pennsylvania Avenue, NW.,
Washington, DC 20004, attorney for the
licensee.

The Commission will issue a notice or
order granting or denying a hearing
request or intervention petition,
designating the issues for any hearing
that will be held, and designating the
presiding officer. A notice granting a
hearing will be published in the Federal
Register and served on the parties to the
hearing.

For further details with respect to this
action, see the application dated
October 12, 2004, of which a
nonproprietary version is available for
public inspection at the Commission’s
PDR, located at One White Flint North,
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Public File Area 01 F21, 11555
Rockville Pike (first floor), Rockville,
Maryland, and accessible electronically
through the Agencywide Documents
Access and Management System
(ADAMS) Public Electronic Reading
Room on the Internet at the NRC Web
site, http://www.nre.gov/reading-rm/
adams/html. (Note: Public access to
ADAMS has been temporarily
suspended so that security reviews of
publicly available documents may be
performed and potentially sensitive
information removed. Please check the
NRC Web site for updates on the
resumption of ADAMS access.) Persons
who don’t have access to ADAMS or
who encounter problems accessing the
documents located in ADAMS, should
contact the NRC PDR Reference staff by
telephone at 1-800-397—-4209, (301)
415-4737, or by e-mail to pdr@nrc.gov.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland this 10th day
of November 2004.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
David H. Jaffe,
Senior Project Manager, Section 1, Project
Directorate IV, Division of Licensing Project
Management, Office of Nuclear Reactor
Regulation.
[FR Doc. 04—25459 Filed 11-16—04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7590-01-P

NUCLEAR REGULATORY
COMMISSION

[Docket No. 030-05235]

Notice of Availability of Environmental
Assessment and Finding of No
Significant Impact for License
Amendment for the Exxon Mobil
Research and Engineering Company’s
Facility in Paulsboro, NJ

AGENCY: Nuclear Regulatory
Commission.

ACTION: Notice of availability.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Judy
Joustra, Materials Security & Industrial
Branch, Division of Nuclear Materials
Safety, Region I, 475 Allendale Road,
King of Prussia, Pennsylvania, 19406,
telephone (610) 337-5355, fax (610)
337-5269, or by e-mail: JAJ@nrc.gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

I. Introduction

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission
(NRC) is terminating Materials License
No. 29-00505-02 issued to The Exxon
Mobil Research and Engineering
Company (Exxon) and authorizing
release of its facility in Paulsboro, New
Jersey for unrestricted use. NRC has
prepared an Environmental Assessment
(EA) in support of this action in

accordance with the requirements of 10
CFR part 51. Based on the EA, the NRC
has concluded that a Finding of No
Significant Impact (FONSI) is
appropriate. The license will be
terminated following the publication of
this notice.

II. EA Summary

The purpose of the action is to
terminate the license and authorize the
release of the licensee’s Paulsboro, New
Jersey facility for unrestricted use.
Exxon has been authorized by NRC
since November 1, 1956 to use
radioactive materials for research and
development purposes at the site. On
February 10, 2004, Exxon requested that
NRC release the facility for unrestricted
use. Exxon has conducted surveys of the
facility and provided information to the
NRC to demonstrate that the site meets
the license termination criteria in
subpart E of 10 CFR part 20 for
unrestricted use.

The NRC staff has prepared an EA in
support of the license termination. The
facility was remediated and surveyed
prior to the licensee requesting the
termination of the license. The NRC
staff has reviewed the information and
final status survey submitted by Exxon.
Based on its review, the staff has
determined that there are no additional
remediation activities necessary to
complete the proposed action.
Therefore, the staff considered the
impact of the residual radioactivity at
the facility and concluded that since the
residual radioactivity meets the
requirements in subpart E of 10 CFR
part 20, a Finding of No Significant
Impact is appropriate.

III. Finding of No Significant Impact

The staff has prepared the EA
(summarized above) in support of the
license termination and release the
facility for unrestricted use. The NRC
staff has evaluated Exxon’s request and
the results of the surveys and has
concluded that the completed action
complies with subpart E of 10 CFR part
20. The staff has found that the
environmental impacts from the action
are bounded by the impacts evaluated
by NUREG-1496, Volumes 1-3,
“Generic Environmental Impact
Statement in Support of Rulemaking on
Radiological Criteria for License
Termination of NRC-Licensed
Facilities” (ML042310492,
ML042320379, and ML042330385). On
the basis of the EA, the NRC has
concluded that the environmental
impacts from the action are expected to
be insignificant and has determined not
to prepare an environmental impact
statement for the action.

IV. Further Information

Documents related to this action,
including the application for the license
amendment and supporting
documentation, are available
electronically at NRC’s Electronic
Reading Room at http://www.nrc.gov/
reading-rm/adams.html. From this site,
you can access the NRC’s Agencywide
Document Access and Management
System (ADAMS), which provides text
and image files of NRC’s public
documents. The ADAMS accession
numbers for the documents related to
this Notice are: The Environmental
Assessment (ML043130124), Letter
dated February 10, 2004 requesting
termination of the license
(ML040630698), Letter dated May 13,
2004 providing additional information
(ML041730600), Letter dated August 23,
2004 providing additional information
(ML042450527), E-mail dated October 6,
2004 providing additional information
(ML042870539), and Letter dated
October 18, 2004 from New Jersey
Department of Environmental Protection
(ML042990034). Please note that on
October 25, 2004, the NRC terminated
public access to ADAMS and initiated
an additional security review of
publicly available documents to ensure
that potentially sensitive information is
removed from the ADAMS database
accessible through the NRC’s Web site.
Interested members of the public may
obtain copies of the referenced
documents for review and/or copying by
contacting the Public Document Room
pending resumption of public access to
ADAMS. The NRC Public Documents
Room is located at NRC Headquarters in
Rockville, MD, and can be contacted at
(800) 397—4209, (301) 415-4737 or by
“e-mail to: pdr@nrc.gov.”

These documents may also be viewed
electronically on the public computers
located at the NRC’s PDR, O 1 F21, One
White Flint North, 11555 Rockville
Pike, Rockville, MD 20852. The PDR
reproduction contractor will copy
documents for a fee. The PDR is open
from 7:45 a.m. to 4:15 p.m., Monday
through Friday, except on Federal
holidays.

Dated at King of Prussia, Pennsylvania this
9th day of November, 2004.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
John D. Kinneman,

Chief, Materials Security & Industrial Branch,
Division of Nuclear Materials Safety Region
L

[FR Doc. 04-25461 Filed 11-16—04; 8:45 am]|
BILLING CODE 7590-01-P



